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SIX YEARS' REVIEW AT A GLANCE

2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014

Cane Curshed 

(Matric Tons) 363,306
          

606,623
          

710,053
         

464,014
            

360,301
           

527,222
         

Recovery 8.91% 9.53% 9.17% 9.48% 9.75% 9.28%

Sugar Produced 

(Matric Tons) 32,401

            

57,835

            

65,097

           

43,979

              

35,175

             

48,894

           

Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs

Paid up Capital 172,909,620

     

172,909,620

      

172,909,620

     

172,909,620

        

172,909,620

      

172,909,620

     
Reserve & 

Surplus 3,067,668,114

  

594,254,490

      

586,338,979

     

649,510,537

        

523,971,788

      

583,000,430

     
Shareholders 

Equity 3,240,577,734

  

767,164,110

      

759,248,599

     

822,420,157

        

696,881,408

      

755,910,050

     Fixed Assets 5,115,423,652

  

1,814,627,166

   

1,580,825,659

  

1,531,192,067

     

1,483,401,468

   

1,531,781,049

  Sales 2,314,623,158

  

3,762,793,904

   

1,849,979,187

  

3,261,246,962

     

2,451,996,557

   

3,174,410,211

  
Cost of Sales 2,295,798,406

  

3,658,075,471

   

1,787,420,927

  

2,948,835,097

     

2,586,099,968

   

3,005,957,329

  

Gross 

prot/(Loss) 18,824,752

       

104,718,433

      

62,576,260

       

312,411,865

        

(136,103,411)

     

168,452,882

     

(Loss) / Prot 

Before Tax 290,270,651

     

2,595,718

          

(5,732,576)

           

168,520,042

           

(82,608,478)

          

(59,433,850)

         

(Loss) / Prot 

After Tax (214,691,988)

    

(30,738,650)

      

(2,988,340)

           

124,459,437

           

(70,500,029)

          

30,377,420

          

(Loss/Earning Per 

Share (12.42)

               

(1.78)

                 

(0.17)

                     

7.20

                      

(4.08)

                    

2.64

                   

Break up Value of 

Share 45.01

                

45.47

                 

43.91

               

47.56

                    

40.30

                   

43.72
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL

 

GENERAL MEETING 

 
No�ce is hereby given that

 

54th

 

Annual 

  

General Mee�ng of the shareholders of the Company will be 

held at 10:00 a.m on Thursday, February

 

27, 2020

 

at The Arts Council of Pakistan, M.R.Kiyani Road, 

Karachi to transact the following business:- 

1)
 

To confirm the Minutes of
 

the Extraordinary General Mee�ng held on January
 

29, 2020. 
  2)

 
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 

ended September 30, 2019 together with Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.
 

3)
 

To appoint auditors of the Company for the year 2019- 2020 and to fix their remunera�on. The 

present Auditors M/S Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq, Chartered Accountants, re�re and being 

eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment
      

4)  To transact any other ordinary business with the permission of the Chair.       

Karachi: February 04, 2020   

   

    By Order of the Board 

QAMAR RAFI KHAN 

 Corporate Secretary       

 

            NOTES:  

1)
 

Members who are not able to
 

a�end the mee�ng in person may send their respec�ve proxies duly 

signed and stamped in the usual form. Such proxies should reach the Registered Office of the 

Company atleast 48 hours before the mee�ng.
 

2)
 

The Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from18st
 

February, 2020
 

to 
                     

27th
 

February, 2020
 

(both days inclusive). Transfer received at Company Share Registrar M/s C & K 

Management Associates (Pvt) Ltd, 4th

 

Floor, 404 Trade Tower, Abdullah Haroon Road, Karachi at 

the close of business on 17th

  

February, 2020

 

will be treated in �me for a�ending of mee�ng.

 

3)

 

For iden�fica�on, CDC account holders should present the par�cipant’s CNIC, and CDC Account 

Number.

 

4)

 

Shareholders are requested to no�fy the Company of any change in address immediately.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS:

 (Loss) a�er taxa�on                                                                                 Rs.  ( 214,691,988  ) 

 
Incremental Deprecia�on net of deferred tax transferred      

 
from surplus on  revalua�on of Property, Plant and Equipment      Rs.  (   8,387,824 )       

 
     Un-appropriated profit brought forward                                            

  
Rs.

   
176,466,185

                 
Un-appropriated profit carried forward                                                Rs. 

          ==============  
OPERATING RESULTS                  2019      2018 

Cane Crushed-Metric Tons              363,306                             606,623  

Average Recovery     8.91%                                  9.53% 

Sugar Produced-Metric Tons                32,204                               57,835  

Commenced Crushing on        15/12/2018                      30/11/2017  

Stopped Crushing  on                     20/03/2019                      15/04/2018  

Number of Season Days                    95                                     137  

(Loss) Per Share – basic & diluted                   (12.42 )                                ( 1.78 )                                                                              

The Company incurred an a�er-tax Loss of Rs. 214.135 million. The Punjab Government had fixed 

the minimum support price of sugarcane at Rs. 180 per 40 K.G, whereas the Sindh Government 

fixed the price at Rs.  182 per 40 K.G.  

54
th

(29,603,177)
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 FUTURE PROSPECTS. 

The minimum support price of sugarcane has  been increased by the Government from Rs.180 to Rs.190 

per 40 kg but the growers are not supplying the sugarcane at the support price.During the cane crushing  

 season 2019-2020, we have already crushed 197,675
 

tons of sugarcane at an average recovery of 

9.92%
 
and have produced 19,055

 
tons of sugar

                     

EMPLOYEE
 

RELATIONS:
 

Your directors appreciate the spirit of coopera�on shown by the officers, staff and workers and we hope 

that their dedica�on will con�nue in future.

 

 

AUDITORS: 

M/s. Rehman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq, Chartered Accountants, the auditors of the Company re�re and 

offer themselves for reappointment.  The Audit Commi�ee has recommended their

 

reappointment for 

the year 2019-2020.

 

Karachi : February 6, 2020

AUDITOR OBSERVATION 

The auditor’s observa�on is expected to be removed in due course of �me within 4 – 8 weeks to their 

sa�sfac�on both with regards to existence and valua�on. The Company is outsourcing the lis�ng of all 

fixed assets separately by nature and cost as against aggregate cost of plant recorded. The valua�on by 

valuer done taking the plant as a whole except for land and building would also be revised accordingly. 

OMAR G.ADAM
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Statement of Campliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulation, 2017

Name of company 

  

Adam Sugar Mills Limited

 Year ended September 30, 2019

 
 The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 

 1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following: 
 a. Male: 7 

 b. Female: None
 

 2. The composition of board is as follows:
 

 
a) Independent Directors: 

     
1.Syed Nazar Mahmood Shah

 
                                                       

2. Jawaid Ahmed
 

                                                        
3. Lt. Col. ( R ) Muhammad Mujtaba

 
 

b) Other Non-executive Director 1: Junaid G. Adam  
2: Mustafa G. Adam  

 
c) Executive Directors 1: Ghulam Ahmed Adam  
2: Omar G. Adam  

 
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven 
listed companies, including this company;  

 
 4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 

been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures.  

 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the 
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company; 

 
 

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 
been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations. 

 
 

 
 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a 
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of 
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Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting 
of the Board; 

  8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of 
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations. 

  9. The Directors at the board are adequately trained to perform their duties and have been 
provided in-house presentation to acquaint them on their roles and responsibilities under the 
requirements of CCG. During this financial year, none of the director has attended any training 
program of corporate governance due to their busy schedule. However, more than 50% of 
directors are exempt from

 
Directors Training Program.

  10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal 
Audit including

 
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with 

relevant requirements of theRegulations.   
11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board. 

 12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:  
 

a) Audit Committee 1. Mr. Syed Nazar Mahmood Shah - Chairman 
 2: Mr. Jawaid Ahmed -  Member  

3: Mustafa  G. Adam-  Member  
 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee  1: Lt. Col. ( RTD. ) Muhammad Mujtaba-Chairman 

2: Mr. Junaid G. Adam -
 

Member
 

3: Mr. Omar G. Adam -
 

Member
 

 
 

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and 
advised to the committee for compliance. 

  

14. The frequency of meetings committees were as per following: 
 

a) Audit Committee 
                             

4 Quarterly
 

Meeting
 

 

b)HR and Remuneration Committee 1 Annual Meeting 

  
 

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably 
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant withprocedures of the company. 

  

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a 
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all 
their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines 
on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they 
and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, 
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dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, 
head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;  
 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to 
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other 
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines 
in this regard.  
 

18. We
 

confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the 
Regulations have been complied with except for the following: 

 
 

i.
 

that the positions of the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary have been 

held by the same person,
 

which is a non-compliance with the requirement of Regulation 

24
 
of the Listed Companies (Code of corporate governance) Regulation, 2019.

 

_____________________

 
 

(JAWAID AHMED )

 
 

Chairman

 
 

Karachi

 
 

Dated: February06, 2020

 

19. Explanation for non-compliance: 
 
We appointed a Qualified chartered accountant in the year 2018 for filling the position of Chief 
Financial Officer who remained with the company for ten months however, he left with short 
notice. We continue to hunt for another qualified accountant and our endeavor is focused on 
becoming compliant as soon as possible. We are committed to appoint a separate qualified person 
for the position of Chief Financial Officer latest by April 30, 2020. We have also explain this in 
our letter dated July 27, 2019 having reference No. ADAMSM-HO/G-5/118 against letter issued 
by SECP on 28th June 2019 having reference number EMD/233/330/2002. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT 
 

 To the members of M/s. Adam Sugar Mills Limited
 

 REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED 
COMPANIES

 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

 
 We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 

Governance) Regulations, 2019
 
(the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Adam Sugar Mills 

Limited
 
(the Company) for the year ended September

 
30, 2019

 
in accordance with the requirements

 
of
 

regulation 36
 

of the Regulations.
 

 
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 
compliance  with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the 
Regulations.  

 
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach . 
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks 
and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate 
governance procedures and risks.  

 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. 
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the 
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have 
not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties 
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not. 

 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended September 30, 
2019.  

 

Further, we highlighted below instance of non-compliance with the requirement of the Codes as reflected in 
the paragraph  18  of the statement of compliance: 

 
 

S.No.
 
Reference No.

 
Description

 
 

1
 

 
 
 

 

As per Regulation 24 of the Listed
 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 

Regulations, 2019, an individual shall not simultaneously holds the position of 
the Company secretary

 
and Chief Financial Officer. However, we noted that the 

Chief Financial Officer of the company also acts as the Company Secretary.
 

 
 
 

Karachi.
 

Date:________________
  Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Raq

 

Chartered Accountants
 

 
 

18
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ’S
 

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
 

OF 
 

ADAM SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
 

 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

 

Disclaimer of Opinion
 

 

We were engaged to audit the annexed financial statements of M/s. Adam Sugar Mills
 

Limited (‘the 
Company’) which comprise the statement of financial position as at September

 

30, 2019,
 

and the statement of 
profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information(‘the financial statements’).

 
 

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Bases for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our 
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to prov ide a basis for an audit 
opinion on the financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion as to whether the statement of 
financial position,

 

the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the 
Companies Act,

 

2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and, respectively, give a true and fair view of 
the state of the Company’s affairs as at September

 

30, 2019 and of the loss, total comprehensive income, its

 

changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended.

 
 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

 

 

Property, plant and equipment

 
 

a)

 

As reported in Note 5 to the financial statements, the Company’s property, plant and equipment 
amounts to Rs. 5.11 billion (2018: 1.8 billion) which comprises of 79% (2018: 49%) of the total 
assets. We were unable to satisfy ourselves as to the Existence, Accuracy and Valuation of the 
property, plant and equipment primarily due to the following reason:

 
 

�

 

We were not able to conduct the physical inspection

 

of the assets as at September 30, 2019 
due to

 

non-availability of information. During the course of audit, on January 07, 2020 we 
have carried out the physical inspection of the assets on the basis of assets listing as at January 
07, 2020 as an alternate procedure, however, management were unable to make appropriate

 

roll back

 

reconciliation of the assets as at the reporting date.

 
 

Since, the aforesaid roll back reconciliation of the assets was

 

not prepared by management, 
we were unable to determine whether any adjustments that might have been necessary to 
ensure accurate recording ofassets as at the reporting date.
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�

 

During the year, the Company has revalued its plant and machinery through an independent 
valuer. The valuer has assessed the valuation of assets as a whole instead of assessment of 
valuation of assets on individual basis.The value of plant and machinery as per valuation 
report is amounting to Rs. 3.9

 

billion as at September 16, 2019

 

which results in recognition of 
surplus amounting to Rs. 2.61 billion

 

during the year. Due to the fact, item wise valuation of 
assets is not available as at September 30, 2019 with the management.

 
Since, valuation of individual assets is not determined by the management valuer, in view of 
the aforementioned limitations, we were unable to determine whether the valuation of

 
assets 

carried at September 30, 2019 present true and fair view
 

in all material aspects.
 

Store and spares
 

 

b)  As reported in Note 7 to the Financial Statements, the company’s stores and spares amounting to Rs. 
147.82 million (2018: 145.30 million) as at September 30, 2019. These comprises of 2.27% (2018: 
3.90%) of the total assets. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the 
valuation of the stores and spares at the reporting date since management of the company did not 
conduct an impairment assessment as at the reporting date to identify slow moving and obsolete items.  

 

In view of the aforementioned limitations, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments 
might have been  found necessary in respect of provision for slow moving store and spares items or 
write off obsolete store and spares item as at September 30, 2019 as well as corresponding effect to be 
recognized as expenses in the statement of profit of loss account

 
for
 

the years
 

then ended.
 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

 
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

 
 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

 
 Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan and to issue an auditor’s report. However, 
because of the matters described in the Bases for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not 
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the financial 
statements.

 

 
We are independent  of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements.  

 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

 

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Bases for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above, 
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to provide a basis for an opinion on the 
following matters as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017): 

 

(a)
 

whether, in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

 
 

(b)
 

whether, in our opinion, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement 
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together 
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), 
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns.

 

 Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the matters identified in (a) and (b) above. However, we would 
like to state that, in our opinion:

 
 (i)  the investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 

purpose of the Company’s business; and  
 

(ii)  no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980). 
 
 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Muhammad 
Waseem.  

 
 
 
 

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ  

Chartered Accountants  
 

Karachi
 

 

Date: 
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PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES HELD BY THE

SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER, 2019

NUMBER OF 

SHAREHOLDERS

TOTAL SHARES                          

HELD  

1,686
                   

FROM 1
                  

TO 100
                      

58,477
                 

394
                      

FROM 101
              

TO 500
                      

101,821
               

101
                      

FROM 501
              

TO 1,000
                  

87,010
                 

171
                      

FROM 1,001
           

TO 5,000
                  

478,597
               

72

                        
FROM 5,001

           
TO 10,000

                
502,831

               
14

                        

FROM 10,001

        

TO 15,000

                

179,208

               4

                          

FROM 15,001

        

TO 20,000

                

75,500

                 2

                          

FROM 20,001

        

TO 25,000

                

45,500

                 4

                          

FROM 25,001

        

TO 30,000

                

104,100

               2

                          

FROM 30,001

        

TO 35,000

                

61,652

                 1

                          

FROM 35,001

        

TO 40,000

                

37,000

                 
3

                          

FROM 40,001

        

TO 45,000

                

123,504

               
1

                          

FROM 45,001

        

TO 50,000

                

50,000

                 
2

                          

FROM 55,001

        

TO 60,000

                

113,336

               
1

                          

FROM 60,001

        

TO 65,000

                

61,000

                 

2

                          

FROM 65,001

        

TO 70,000

                

133,000

               

1

                          

FROM 115,001

      

TO 120,000

              

118,000

               

1

                          

FROM 155,001

      

TO 160,000

              

158,157

               

1

                          

FROM 255,001

      

TO 260,000

              

256,479

               

3

                          

FROM 295,001

      

TO 300,000

              

893,500

               

1

                          

FROM 385,001

      

TO 390,000

              

388,000

               

1

                          

FROM 390,001

      

TO 395,000

              

393,500

               

1

                          

FROM 455,001

      

TO 460,000

              

457,683

               

1

                          

FROM 495,001

      

TO 500,000

              

500,000

               

1 FROM 3,500,001 TO 3,505,000 3,503,389

1 FROM 8,405,001 TO 8,410,000 8,409,718

2,472 17,290,962

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDING
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2,447

18

2,472

13,661,884

117

190

3,627,762

401

608

79.02%

20.98%
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ADAM SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2018

ASSETS Note

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 5 5,115,423,652

      

1,814,627,166

     

Long term deposits 32,400

                  

32,400

                 

Intangible assets 6 -

                        

-

                      

5,115,456,052

      

1,814,659,566

     

Current assets

Stores and spares 7 147,819,584

 

145,308,884

 

Stock in trade 8 928,868,777

 

1,244,944,640

 

Short term investments 9 25,323,290

 

23,636,474

 

Trade debts - unsecured 10 65,470,541

 

92,309,602

 

Short term loans and advances 11 87,628,408

 

175,736,231

 

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 12 1,493,151

 

6,590,726

 

Rebate receivable 10,860,305

 

133,827,563

 

Others receivables - considered good 1,508,922

 

1,026,192

 

Interest accrued 1,159,204

 

2,349,331

 

Tax refunds due from government 39,633,337

 

66,715,790

 

Cash and bank balances 13 70,088,017

 
28,661,326

1,379,853,536
      

1,921,106,759
     

6,495,309,588      3,735,766,325     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves

Authorized Capital 14 250,000,000

         
250,000,000

        
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 14 172,909,620

 

172,909,620

 
Revenue reserve:

Unappropriated (losses) / profit (29,603,177)

 

176,466,185

 

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and machinery - net 15 2,867,668,114

 

394,254,490

 

Capital reserve:

General reserve 200,000,000

 

200,000,000

 

Share premium 172,909,620

 

172,909,620

3,392,621,789

 

1,125,277,527

 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Director's subordinated loan 16 22,898,819

 

21,008,091

          

Long term finance - secured 17 172,626,930

 

282,285,660

        

Deferred liabilities 18 801,849,791 101,236,903

        

997,375,540

 

404,530,654

        

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowings 19 1,194,210,333

 

1,233,855,153

     

Trade and other payables 20 734,091,149

 

828,886,141

        

Accrued markup 53,083,858 26,176,195

Current maturity of long term financing 17 109,658,730 103,408,730

Provident fund payable 8,425,842 7,762,914

Unclaimed dividend 5,842,347 5,869,011

2,105,312,259 2,205,958,144

Contingencies and commitments 21 - -

6,495,309,588 3,735,766,325

––––––––––––––– Rupees –––––––––––––––

38

Capital Contribution from Director 8,737,612 8,737,612

QAMAR RAFI KHAN

 

 

 

          

        

            

OMAR G.ADAM
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ADAM SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2018
Note

Turnover - net 22 2,314,623,158       3,762,793,904       

Cost of sales 23 (2,295,798,406)     (3,658,075,471)      

Gross prot 18,824,752            104,718,433           

Administrative expenses 24 (77,464,579)          (90,891,231)           

Selling and distribution cost 25 (4,183,920)            (55,437,768)           

(81,648,499)          (146,328,999)         

Operating loss (62,823,747)          (41,610,566)           

Finance cost 26 (231,602,792) (108,547,214)         

Other income 27 4,155,888 147,790,134           

Workers' welfare fund - (228,072)                

(227,446,904)        39,014,848             

Loss before taxation (290,270,651)        (2,595,718)             

Taxation 28 75,578,663            (28,142,932)           

Loss after taxation (214,691,988)        (30,738,650)           

Loss per share- basic & diluted 29 (12.42)                   (1.78)                      

––––––---––– Rupees –––––---––––

QAMAR RAFI KHAN OMAR G.ADAM

38
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ADAM SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2018

Loss after taxation

     

(214,691,988)

         

(30,738,650)

 

Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 234,802

 

238,456

               

Revaluation increase during the year 3,291,823,504

 

-

 

Deferred tax on above (810,022,056)

 

-

 

2,481,801,448

     

-

                       

Reversal of deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus

due to change in tax rate. -

 

2,618,868

            

2,482,036,250

            

2,857,324

 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 2,267,344,262

     

(27,881,326)

         

----------------------- Rupees -----------------------

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 from an integral part of these financial statements

QAMAR RAFI KHAN OMAR G.ADAM
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QAMAR RAFI KHAN OMAR G.ADAM

ADAM SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note

Loss before taxation (290,270,651)         (2,595,718)          

Adjustments:

Depreciation 88,575,514            72,101,973         
Finance cost 231,602,792

          
108,547,214

      
Provision for Workers Welfare Fund -

                         
228,072

             Provision for provident fund 1,306,808

              
284,968

             Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,148,613)

             

-

                     Provision for gratuity 363,893

                 

404,087

             
320,700,394

          

181,566,314

      
Operating profit before working capital changes 30,429,743

            

178,970,596

      
Working capital changes:

Decrease / (increase) in current assets

Stores and spares (2,510,700)

             

(16,248,079)

       

Stock in trade 316,075,863

          

585,904,682

      

Trade debts 26,839,061

            

(20,179,565)

       

Rebate receivable 122,967,258

          

(127,367,563)

     

Loans and advances 88,107,823

            

121,177,307

      

Deposits and prepayments and other receivables 4,614,845

              

2,861,479

          

Interest accrued on short term investment 1,190,127

              

(382,046)

            

Decrease in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (94,794,992)

           

(257,949,375)

     

462,489,285

          

287,816,840

      

Net cash generated from operations 492,919,028

          

466,787,436

      

Financial charges paid (202,804,401)

         

(112,722,907)

     

Provident fund paid (643,880)

                

(305,595)

            

Gratuity paid -

                         

(56,000)

              

Taxes paid (6,877,143)

             

(4,748,892)

         

(210,325,424)

         

(117,833,394)

     

Net cash generated from operating activities 282,593,604

          

348,954,042

      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure (97,975,783)

           

(305,903,478)

     

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,575,900

              

-

                     

Short term investments (1,686,816)

             

(118,320)

            

Net cash used in investing activities (98,086,699)

           

(306,021,798)

     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term loan (repaid) / obtained (103,408,730)

         

169,024,658

      

Dividend paid during the year (26,664)

                  

-

                     

Net cash used in nancing activities (103,435,394)

         

169,024,658

      

81,071,511

            

211,956,902

      

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1,205,193,827)

      

(1,417,150,729)

  

30 (1,124,122,316)

      

(1,205,193,827)

  

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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QAMAR RAFI KHAN OMAR G.ADAM

ADAM SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Balance as at October 01, 2017 172,909,620
    

172,909,620
      

8,737,612
         

200,000,000
    

393,910,254
       

204,691,747
            

Total comprehensive income for the year

ended September 30, 2018

- Loss after tax -                  -                    -                    -                  -                     (30,738,650)            

- Other comprehensive income -                  -                    -                    -                  2,618,868           238,456                   

-                  -                    -                  2,618,868           (30,500,194)            

Transferred from surplus on revaluatio  n  -
                  

-
                    

-
                    

-
                  

(2,274,632)
          

2,274,632
                

   of property and equipment - net of tax

Balance as at September 30, 2018 172,909,620

    

172,909,620

      

8,737,612

         

200,000,000

    

394,254,490

       

176,466,185

            

Total comprehensive income for the year

ended September 30, 2019

- Loss after tax -

                  

-

                    

-

                    

-

                  

-

                     

(214,691,988)

          

- Other comprehensive income -

                  

-

                    

-

                    

-

                  

2,481,801,448

    

234,802

                   

-

                  

-

                    

-

                    

-

                  

2,481,801,448

    

(214,457,186)

          

Transferred from surplus on revaluatio  n  -

                  

-

                    

-

                    

-

                  

(8,387,824)

          

8,387,824

                

   of property and equipment - net of tax

Balance as at September 30, 2019 172,909,620

    

172,909,620

      

8,737,612

         

200,000,000

    

2,867,668,114

    

(29,603,177)

            

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Revenue ReserveCapital Reserve

Rupees

Unappropriated 

prot / (losses)

Share      

Capital
Share Premium

General 

reserve

Surplus on 

revaluation of 

Property and 

Equipment

Capital 

contribution 

from Director

Total

1,153,158,853
     

(30,738,650)        

2,857,324            

(27,881,326)        

-
                      

1,125,277,527

     

(214,691,988)

       

2,482,036,250

     

2,267,344,262

     

-

                      

3,392,621,789
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ADAM SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The geographical location and address of the Company's business units, including plant are as under:

Mill: The Company's plant is located at Chak #4, Fordwah, Chishtian, District Bahawalnagar, Punjab.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance 

-

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

Head ofce:The Company's registered office is situated at first floor, Haji Adam Chambers, Altaf Hussain Road,

New Challi, Karachi.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan.  The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and

directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as otherwise disclosed in relevant

notes to these financial statements.

Adam Sugar Mills Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in Pakistan in 1965 in the name of Bahawalnagar Sugar

Mills Limited as a public limited company. In 1985, the name of the Company was changed to Adam Sugar Mills

Limited. The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange ("the Exchange"). The Company is

principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of white sugar.

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in

which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company’s
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2.4 Use of estimates and judgments 

Note

- Residual values and useful lives of items of Property, plant and equipment 4.1 

- Provision of slow moving and obsolete stores and spares 4.6 

- Staff retirement benefits - Defined contribution plan 4.14

- Provision for taxation 4.16

2.5 NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

2.5.1 Amendments to approved accounting standards effective during the year ended September 30, 2019:

functional and presentation currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain

critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the

Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The

areas where various assumptions and estimates are involved or where judgment was exercised in application of

accounting policies are as follows:

- IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing

leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a

Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions

Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model

for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease

liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term

leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors

continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The application of amendment is not likely to have an

impact on Company's financial statements.

2.5.2 New / revised accounting standards, amendments to published accounting standards, and

interpretations that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act,

2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

the dates specified below:

There are new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning 01

October 2018 other than those disclosed in note 3 are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant

effect on the Company's financial statements and are therefore not stated in these financial statements.
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-

-

-

-

-

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or

settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its

current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when

calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive

income. The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations

for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2020). The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines

whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a

business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive

process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an

election to use a concentration test. The application of amendment is not likely to have an impact on

Company's financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for measurement

at amortised cost or FVOCI, IFRS 9 requires its contractual cash flows to meet the SPPI criterion - i.e. the cash

flows are 'solely payments of principal and interest'. Some prepayment options could result in the party that

triggers the early termination receiving compensation from the other party (negative compensation). The

amendment allows that financial assets containing prepayment features with negative compensation can be

measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if they meet the

other relevant requirements of IFRS 9. The application of amendment is not likely to have an impact on

Company's financial statements.

Amendment to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Long Term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect

companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected

in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or 'LTI'). The amendment and accompanying

example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which

both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial

statements.

IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments

under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of

current and deferred tax. The management is in the process of analysing the potential impacts on adoption of

this interpretation.

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in

Accounting Estimates and Errors' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The

amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended

to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance

on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance

with IFRS Standards.
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-

-

-

-

3 INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 9 AND IFRS 15

3.1 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- measured at amortized cost

The accounting policies that apply to financial instruments are stated in note 4.3 to the financial statements.

IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including

payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that

generates the distributable profits. 

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to

following approved accounting standards:

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any

borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' and IFRS 11 'Joint Arrangements' - the amendment aims to clarify the

accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a

business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the

business. A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint

control of the business.

The following table explains the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories

under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company's financial assets as at September 30, 2018:

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2019 and are not likely to

have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

With effect from October 01, 2018, the Company has adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 15 ‘Revenue

from Contracts with Customers’. Following is the analysis as to whether and, if so, how the adoption of these new

standards has an impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 9 replaced the provisions of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ that relates to the

recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial

instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The details of new significant accounting policies

adopted and the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out below:

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial

liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets of held to maturity, loans and

receivables, held for trading and available-for-sale. IFRS 9 classifies financial assets in the following three categories:
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Impairment of financial assets

3.2 IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. IFRS 9 introduces a

forward looking expected credit losses model, rather than the current incurred loss model, when assessing the

impairment of financial assets in the scope of IFRS 9. The new impairment model applies to financial assets

measured at amortized cost, financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, contract

assets, lease receivables and trade receivables.

During the year, the Company has changed its accounting policy with respect to measurement of credit loss allowance

on financial assets to bring it in line with the new impairment requirements of IFRS 9 as noted above. However, the

said change in accounting policy has no impact on the financial position or financial performance of the Company,

because Company has realised all of its financial assets in due course of time. For the revised accounting policy,

please refer note 4.3.1 to these financial statements.

Though upon initial application of IFRS 9, the classification of financial assets changed as aforesaid, the said change

had no impact on the carrying amount of those financial assets as on October 01, 2018 (i.e. the date of initial

application of IFRS 9).

On 28 May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") issued International Financial Reporting

Standard (IFRS) 15 'Revenue From Contracts with Customers' which provides a unified five-step model for

determining the timing, measurement and recognition of revenue. The focus of the new standard is to recognize

revenue as performance obligations are satisfied rather than based on the transfer of risk and rewards. IFRS 15

includes a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements including qualitative and quantitative information about

contracts with customers to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue. The standard

supersedes IAS 18 'Revenue', IAS 11 'Construction Contracts' and the number of revenue related interpretations

issued thereunder.

The contracts for the sale of sugar, bagasse and molasses entered into by the Company with its customers generally

include a single performance obligation. The management of the Company has concluded that, revenue from sale of

goods be recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, which is, in case of

local sales, when the goods are dispatched to the customer, whereas, with respect to export sales, on the date of bill of

lading. This is consistent with the timing of revenue recognition previously followed by the Company in accordance

with IAS 18. Therefore, adoption of IFRS 15 at 01 October 2018, did not have an effect on the financial statements of

the Company.

Financial assets
Original classication 

as per IAS 39

New 

classication as 

per IFRS 9

Carrying amount 

as per IAS 39 as 

on September 30, 

2018

Carrying amount on 

initial adoption of 

IFRS 9 on October 1, 

2018

Effect on October 

01, 2018 on 

Retained Earning

Long term deposits LR Amortized cost                    32,400                          32,400 

Trade debts - unsecured LR Amortized cost 65,470,541

           

65,470,541

                  

-

                          

Short term investments HTM Amortized cost 25,323,290

           

25,323,290

                  

-

                          

Short term loans and advances LR Amortized cost 2,168,724

             

2,168,724

                    

-

                          

Rebate receivable LR Amortized cost 10,860,305

           

10,860,305

                  

-

                          

Others receivables - considered good LR Amortized cost 1,028,548

             

1,028,548

                    

-

                          

Cash and bank balances LR Amortized cost 70,088,017

           

70,088,017

                  

-

                          

 - "FVOCI" stands for 'Fair value through other comprehensive income'

 - "FVTPL" stands for 'Fair value through prot or loss'

 - "AFS" stands for 'Available-for-sale'

 - "LR" stands for 'Loans and receivables'

 - "AC" stands for 'Amortised cost'

 - "HTM" stands for 'Held to Maturity'
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

4.2 Intangible Assets

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment if any, and consists of expenditure incurred and advances

made in respect of property, plant and equipment in the course of their construction and installation. Transfers are

made to relevant asset's category as and when assets are available for intended use.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except freehold

land, factory building, non-factory buildings and plant and machinery which are stated at revalued amounts.

Depreciation is charged to statement profit or loss account using reducing balance method at the rates given in note

5.1. Depreciation is charged from the date when the asset is available for use till the date of disposal.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of buildings and plant and machinery is recognised in other

comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity except to the extent that it reverses a

revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase

is credited to statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying

amount arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant & machinery is charged to statement of profit or loss

account to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the surplus on revaluation relating to a previous

revaluation of that asset. The surplus on revaluation to the extent of incremental depreciation charged is transferred to

unappropriated profit. The surplus realized on disposal of revalued fixed assets is credited directly to retained

earnings.

Computer software acquisition or development cost is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment

losses, if any, and is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to

the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably. Costs directly associated with identifiable software

that will have probable economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as an intangible asset.

Direct costs include the purchase cost of software and other directly attributable costs of preparing the software for its

intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only

when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and its cost can be

reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalised

and the asset so replaced is retired from use. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or

loss account during the period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss

account in the year in which the asset is derecognized.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These 

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Major spare parts qualify for recognition as property, plant and equipment when an entity expects to use them during

more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating assets category as and when such items are available for

use.

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of

these assets may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of these assets exceed their recoverable amount,

an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account.
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(a) financial assets measured at amortized cost.

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

(c) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income when either:

(i)

(ii)

(c) Financial assets at FVTPL

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value.

4.3.2 Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

These are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within business model whose objective is to hold
assets to collect contractual cash flows, and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in accordance is

recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains

and losses, until the financial asset is derecognised or reclassified. When the financial asset is derecognised

the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment (except for investments in equity instruments which are

designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income in whose case the cumulative gain or loss

previously recognized in other comprehensive income is not so reclassified). Interest is calculated using the

effective interest method and is recognised in statement of profit or loss account.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue thereof.

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; or

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue thereof.

Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses arising from such financial

assets are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

it is an investment in equity instrument which is designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income in accordance with the irrevocable election available to the Company at initial recognition.

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or

at fair value through other comprehensive income, as aforesaid.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (determined using the effective interest method) less

accumulated impairment losses.

4.3 Financial assets

4.3.1 Classification and initial measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following three categories:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Net gains or losses arising from remeasurement of such financial assets as well as any interest income accruing

thereon are recognized in the statement of profit or loss account.
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4.3.3 Impairment

4.3.4 De-recognition

4.4 Financial liabilities

4.5 Off-setting of nancial assets and nancial liabilities

4.6 Stores, spares and loose tools

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position, if the

Company has a legally enforceable right to setoff the recognized amounts and the Company intends to settle either on

a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have

been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Stores and spares excluding items in transit are valued at lower of average cost and net realizable value. Items in

transit are valued at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon accumulated to the reporting

date.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL). A

financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as

such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,

including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have expired or

when the financial liability's cash flows have been substantially modified.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on management's best

estimate regarding there future usability.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 'Simplified Approach' to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime

expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The Company measures expected credit losses on trade receivables

in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount, time value of money and reasonable and

supportable information at the reporting date about the past events, current conditions and forecast of future

economic conditions. The Company recognises in the statement of profit or loss account, as an impairment loss, the

amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date. 

Annual Report 2019



36

4.7 Stock-in-trade

Finished goods                     : at lower of average manufacturing cost and net realizable value

Work in process                  : at average raw material cost and overheads

Molasses                            : at net realizable value

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase,

costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is

determined as follows.

Net realizable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs

necessary to be incurred for its sale.

4.8 Trade debts and other receivables

4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

4.10 Share capital

4.11 Trade and other payables

4.12 Short tem borrowing

4.13 Provisions

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents

comprise cash in hand, bank balances and short term borrowing.

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently

carried at amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is

recognized in the statement of profit or loss account over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Trade debts and other receivables are carried at their initial transaction price less the lifetime expected credit loss

allowance. 

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in ordinary course of

business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current if payment is due within one year or less (or in

normal operating cycle of business, if longer), if not, they are classified as non current liabilities. Liabilities for trade

and other amounts payable are carried at amortized cost.

Provision is recognized when, as a result of past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation

that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation. Subsequently, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect

the current best estimate.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to

the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of

the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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4.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from local sale (sugar & molasses) is recognized when the customer obtains control of the goods being

when the goods are delivered to the customer and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's

acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when the goods have been dispatched from the Company's premises and

either the customer has accepted the goods in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have

elapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Interest income

4.16 Taxation

Current

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rate enacted by or substantively

enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous year. Provision for current

tax is based on higher of the taxable income at current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax

credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any or minimum tax u/s 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 after taking

into account tax credits or Alternative Corporate Tax u/s 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. However, for

income covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rates under such regime. The amount of

unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is

due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss

account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In

that case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or

services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not

adjust the transaction price for the effect of time value of money.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered to customers in case of local sales as this is the point in time

that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Return on bank deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at the rate

applicable.

4.14 Staff retirement benets - Defined contribution plan

Dened contribution plan

The Company operates a recognized provident fund for all its eligible permanent employees. Equal monthly

contributions are made by the Company and employees to the fund at the rate of 12% of basic salary. The Company's

contribution are charged to statement of profit or loss account.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution and will

have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for the defined contributions plans are

recognized as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss account when they are due.

Dened benet plan

Staff retirement benefits are payable to staff on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under the scheme.

All remeasurement gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all permanent employees. Contribution is made to this

scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuation is carried out using the Projected Unit

Credit Method.
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Deferred

4.17 Foreign currency transaction and translation

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no

longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be

utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset

is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the reporting date.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency using the exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the date of the transaction. All monetary assets

and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-

monetary assets are translated using exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. Exchange gains

and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translations at the year end exchange rates

of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are taken to the statement of profit or loss

account.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences, at the

reporting date, between the carrying amount and the tax base of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are

recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses and tax credits, to the

extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences

and /or carry forward of unused tax losses or tax credits can be utilized. 

4.18 Borrowing cost

4.19 Dividend and appropriation to reserve

2019 2018

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note ––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

Operating fixed assets 5.1 5,115,423,652

      

1,814,627,166

Capital work in progress -

                        

-

5,115,423,652

      

1,814,627,166

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of

borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such

borrowing costs, if any, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are recognized as a liability in the

financial statements in the period in which these are approved. Transfer between reserves made subsequent to the

reporting date is considered as a non adjusting event and is recognized in the financial statements in the period in

which such transfers are made.
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5.2 The depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows: ––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

Cost of sales 84,456,176 67,775,855

Administrative expenses 4,119,338 4,326,118

88,575,514 72,101,973

5.3

5.4

5.5

2019 2018

–––––––––– Rupees ––––––––––

5.6 Capital work in progress Note

Building and civil works -

                        

-

                         

Plant and machinery -

                        

-

                         

5.6.1 -

                        

-

                         5.6.1 Movement of capital work in progress is as under:

The forced sale value of the land, building, plant and machinery has been assessed at September 30, 2019 amounting

to Rs. 4.026 billion.

The latest revaluation was carried out by an independent valuer Iqbal A. Nanjee & Co. (Pvt.) Ltd. As at September

16, 2019.

Had there been no revaluation, the related figures of freehold land, buildings and plant and machinery as at

September 30, 2019 would have been as follows:

207.920

               

5.914

                     

3.64

                     

3.64

                       

Total Area 

(acres)

Covered Area 

(acres)
Type of immovable property

Land

Factory Area

 

 

 

 Building and 

civil works 

 Plant and 

Machinery  Total 

Balance as at 1 October 2017 33,211,042

     

461,310

          

33,672,352

     

Additions during the year 12,823,718

     

-

                 

12,823,718

     

Transfer to operating fixed asset (46,034,760)

   

(461,310)

        

(46,496,070)

    

Balance as at 30 September 2018 - - -

Additions during the year 1,727,655 - 1,727,655

Transfer to operating fixed asset (1,727,655) - (1,727,655)

Balance as at 30 September 2019 - - -

––––––––––– Rupees –––––––––––

2019 2018

September 30,
2019

W.D.V

Land 18,855,030

       
18,855,030

       Building, Plant and Machinery 1,362,166,394

     

1,346,092,731

      

Particulars

1,381,021,424 1,364,947,761

September 30,
2018

W.D.V

Annual Report 2019



41

2019 2018

6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS ––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

Accounting Software

Cost 1,209,500 1,209,500

Accumulated amortisation (1,209,500) (1,209,500)

Net book value - -

7 STORES AND SPARES 

Stores 124,929,432

         

125,294,590

Spares 22,890,152

           

20,014,294

147,819,584

         

145,308,884

8 STOCK IN TRADE 

Sugar-in-process 4,291,003

             

4,843,350

Finished goods 924,577,774

         

1,216,194,253

Molasses -

                        

23,907,037

928,868,777

         

1,244,944,640

9 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

2019 2018

10 TRADE DEBTS - unsecured Note ––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

Considered good

- Local 10.1 65,470,541 92,309,602

10.1 This includes receivable from Province of Punjab through District Collector Bahawalnagar and other related

Government departments amounting to Rs. 37.5 million (2018: Rs. 37.5 million) (Refer Note 21.2).

This represents investments in term deposit receipts of various banks. Rate of return on these investments ranges

from 8.42% to 11% (2018: 3.75% to 5.50%).

2019 2018

11 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES Note ––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

Loan to staff 11.1             1,688,350 1,980,290              

Advances:

- to growers 3,135,865            4,031,338              

- to contractors 1,656,665            1,656,665              

- to suppliers 80,340,485          167,324,213          

- against expenses 807,043               743,725                 

85,940,058          173,755,941          

87,628,408          175,736,231          

                
11.1 This represents interest free loan provided to employees in accordance with the Company’s policy and are

recoverable in equal monthly installments.
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2019 2018

12 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM Note ––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

PREPAYMENTS

Short term prepayments               1,223,806                 4,934,061 

Trade deposits                  269,345                 1,656,665 

              1,493,151                 6,590,726 

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 25,864

                  

9,431,198

              

Cash at bank

- Current accounts 67,571,179

           

18,848,176

            

- Deposit accounts 13.1 2,490,974

             

381,952

                 

70,062,153

           

19,230,128

            

70,088,017

           

28,661,326

            

13.1

14 AUTHORIZED, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

These represent amount deposited with banks in saving accounts carrying profit at the rate of 9.5% to 10% (2018: 

3.5% to 4%).

2019 2018 2019 2018

----(Number of shares)----

Authorized capital

25,000,000 25,000,000

       

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 250,000,000

         

250,000,000

        

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

14,968,221 14,968,221

       

fully paid in cash 149,682,210

         

149,682,210

        

250,000

 

250,000

            

Issued to PICIC under terms of loan agreement 2,500,000

             

2,500,000

           

2,072,741 2,072,741

         

Issued as fully paid bonus shares 20,727,410

           

20,727,410

         

17,290,962 17,290,962

       

172,909,620

         

172,909,620

        

––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

14.1 There is no agreement with shareholders for voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting.
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15 REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND MACHINERY - NET

2019 2018
On freehold land ––––––––––– Rupees –––––––––––

Gross surplus

Balance as at 01 October 356,384,970 356,384,970

           

Revaluation increase recognized during the year 498,644,000

         

-

                         

855,028,970 356,384,970

On buildings / plant and machinery

Gross surplus

Balance as at 01 October 53,337,346 56,541,053

Revaluation increase recognized during the year 2,793,179,504 -

Incremental depreciation transferred to retained earnings (11,813,836) (3,203,707)

2,834,703,014 53,337,346

This represents surplus over book values resulting from the revaluation of Land, buildings and Plant and machinery

carried out in the years 2004, 2006, 2009, 2014 and 2019 as reduced by the surplus realized on disposal, if any, of the

revalued assets and incremental depreciation arising out of revaluation. The latest revaluation was carried out by an

independent valuer Iqbal A. Nanjee & Co. (Pvt.) Ltd. as on September 16, 2019.

         

Related deferred tax charge

Balance as at 01 October (15,467,826) (19,015,769)

Effect of change in tax rate - 2,618,868

Revaluation increase recognized during the year (810,022,056) -

Related deferred tax liability of incremental depreciation 3,426,012 929,075

(822,063,870) (15,467,826)

2,867,668,114 394,254,490

16 DIRECTOR'S SUBORDINATED LOAN 

Balance as at October 01, 21,008,091

           

19,273,478

            

Add: Unwinding of director loan during the year 1,890,728

             

1,734,613

              

22,898,819

           

21,008,091

            

16.1

                       

This represents the unsecured loan of Rs. 24.96 million given by Chief Executive of the Company .This loan had been 

measured to its present value using prevailing market rate of mark-up at 9% per annum respectively for a similar

instrument, having similar terms and credit risk profile, at the time the loan was granted.

Annual Report 2019



44

                

2019 2018

17 LONG TERM FINANCE - SECURED Note ––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

From conventional banking companies

Habib Bank Limited 17.1 30,020,309 57,734,595

JS Bank Limited 17.2 133,515,351

         

177,959,795

          

163,535,660

         

235,694,390

          

From Islamic banking companies

Albaraka Bank Pakistan Limited 17.3 118,750,000

         

150,000,000

          

282,285,660

         

385,694,390

          

Current maturity shown under current liabilities (109,658,730)

        

(103,408,730)

        

172,626,930

         

282,285,660

          

17.1

17.2 This represents term loans of Rs. 155.55 million from JS Bank Limited for purchase of plant, machinery and allied

equipment under BMR process and subsequent enhancements of production capacity and carries mark up at the rate

of 6 months KIBOR plus 2.5%. The loan is payable in 9 equal semi-annual installments. The facility is secured

against First pari passu hypothecation charge with SECP amounting to Rs. 301 million with 25% margin. Further,

additional First pari passu hypothecation charge amounting to Rs. 40 million on new machinery registered with

SECP.

This represents term loan of Rs. 97 million from Habib Bank Limited for the purpose of expansion of production

facility from 7000 TCD to 8000 TCD and carries mark up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 2.5%. The loan is

payable in 8 semi annual installments of Rs. 13.857 million. The loan is secured against equitable mortagage over

mill premises and hypothecation charge for Rs. 267 million over present and future plant and machinery.

17.3

2019 2018

18 DEFERRED LIABILITIES Note ––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

Deferred taxation - net 18.1 799,505,687 99,021,890

Staff retirement benefits - Gratuity 18.2 2,344,104 2,215,013

801,849,791 101,236,903

This represent diminishing musharka facility of Rs.150 million from Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited for purchase

of Plant and machinery to enhance capacity and efficiency of existing plant and machinery and carries mark up at the

rate of matching KIBOR + 2.25%. The loan is payable in 48 equal monthly installments. The facility is secured

against first pari passu charge over all present and future fixed assets of the company with 25% margin amounting to

Rs. 200 million.

18.1 Deferred taxation - net

Deferred tax liability arising from:

-Accelerated tax depreciation 1,070,694,720 253,023,809
1,070,694,720 253,023,809

Deferred tax asset arising from:
-Provision for gratuity (679,790)

               

(642,354)

                

-Unused tax losses (117,036,040)

        

(32,326,457)

           

-Minimum tax carry forward (153,473,203)

        

(121,033,108)

         

(271,189,033)

        

(154,001,919)

         

799,505,687 99,021,890

            

2019 2018

––––––––– Rupees –––––––––
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18.2 Staff retirement benets - Gratuity

2019 2018

––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

18.2.1 Movement in net liability in the statement

   of nancial position

Opening defined benefit obligation 2,215,013

             

2,105,382

              

Expense charged to statement of profit or loss 363,893

                

404,087

                 

Remeasurements (234,802)

               

(238,456)

                

Benefits paid -

                        

(56,000)

                  

Closing defined benefit obligation 2,344,104

             

2,215,013

              

As disclosed in note 4.14, the company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its staff employees. The latest

actuarial valuation was carried out as at September 30, 2019, using the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method.

18.2.2 Expense recognized in the statement of 

  prot or loss 

Current service cost                  142,392                    138,865 

Past service cost                            -                        99,031 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation                  221,501                    166,191 

                 363,893                    404,087 

18.2.3 Remeasurement gains recognised in other comprehensive

    income

Actuarial gains on defined benefit obligation due to

- experience adjustments (234,802)

               

(238,456)

                

(234,802) (238,456)

                               18.2.4 Year end sensitivity analysis on Dened Benet Obligation

Discount Rate + 100 bps 2,280,545

             

2,150,171

              

Discount Rate - 100 bps 2,416,286

             

2,288,174

              
Salary Increase + 100 bps 2,415,608 2,287,471

Salary Increase -100 bps 2,280,010 2,150,158
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18.2.5 Principal assumptions used in valuation of gratuity

Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss 10% 8%

Discount rate used for year end obligation 12.50% 10%

Expected rate of increase in salary level (per annum) 12.50% 10%

Mortality rates SLIC 2001- 2005 SLIC 2001- 2005

18.2.6

18.2.7

                        

                                 

                        

                                 

                       

As of the reporting date, the average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 3 years (2018: 3

years)

The expected gratuity cost, comprising of service cost and net interest for the next year, ending September 30, 2020,

works out to Rs. 354,612/-

19 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

Unsecured - interest free

- from Chief Executive 32,164,394 32,164,394

Secured

- Conventional banks

JS Bank

- Cash finance -

                        

122,481,500

          

- Running finance 19.1 278,410,405

         

249,997,694

          

278,410,405

         

372,479,194

          

Habib Bank Limited

- Cash finance 19.2 260,301,896

         

299,970,581

          

Soneri Bank Limited

- Cash finance 19.3 248,334,375

         

200,000,000

          

Bank of Punjab

- Cash finance 19.4 174,999,263

         

159,240,984

          

962,045,939

         

1,031,690,759

       

- Islamic banking companies

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 19.5 200,000,000

         

170,000,000

          

200,000,000

         

170,000,000

          

1,194,210,333

      

1,233,855,153

       

18.2.8 The current service and interest cost amounting to Rs. 363,893/- is charged under administrative expenses for the

year.
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19.1

19.2

19.3

This represents cash finance facility, to meet working capital requirements of the Company, obtained from Habib

Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 300 million, out of which unavailed as at September 30, 2019 amounting to Rs. 

39.698million (2018: Rs.0.03 million). This facility is secured against Pledge over stock of sugar bags with 25%

margin amounting to Rs. 375 million and ranking charge over fixed assets amounting to Rs. 300 million. Markup

carries at the rate of one month KIBOR + 1.25% (2018: one month KIBOR + 1.25%).

This represents running finance facility, to meet working capital requirements of the Company, obtained from JS

Bank amounting to Rs. 300 million, out of which unavailed as at September 30, 2019 amounting to Rs.21.589

million (2018: Rs.50.1 million). This facility is secured against equitable mortgage on property of directors to the

extent of market value and personal guarantee of the Directors. Standard payment mark up carries at the rate one

month KIBOR + 6% (2018: three months KIBOR + 5%) and Timely payment markup carries at the rate of one month

KIBOR + 3%. (2018: three months KIBOR + 5%).

This represents cash finance facility, to maintain inventory of white sugar of fresh season till sale, obtained from

Soneri Bank Limited amounting to Rs.300 million, out of which unavailed as at September 30, 2019 amounting to

Rs. 51.66million (2018: Rs. 100 million). This facility is secured against pledge of white refined sugar bags with

20% margin in shared godowns under effective control of bank's mucaddam at mills premises backed by

exclusive/specific pledge charge of Rs. 375 million. Markup carries at the rate of three months KIBOR + 1.75%

(2018: three months KIBOR + 1.75%).

19.4

19.5

This represents cash finance facility, to meet working capital requirement, obtained from Bank of Punjab amounting

to Rs. 250 million, out of which unavailed as at September 30, 2019 amounting to Rs. 75 million (2018: Rs. 90

million). This facility is secured against pledge of white refined sugar to the extent of Rs. 333.334 million inclusive

of 25% margin, existing ranking hypothecation charge over present and future current assets of the company of Rs.

333.334 million inclusive of 25% margin, subordination of director's loan, personal guarantee of the Chief Executive

of the company and First charge over fixed assets of the company or mortagage charge over residential/ commercial

property of Directors/Company having market value at least equal to the santioned amount to be created upto March

31st, 2019. Markup carries at the rate of three months KIBOR + 1.5% (2018: three months KIBOR + 1.5%).

This represents Istisna Cum Wakala facility, to meet the working capital requirement, obtained from Dubai Islamic

Bank Limited amounting to Rs.200million,out of which unavailed as at September 30, 2019 amounting to Rs.Nil

(2018: 30 million). This facility is secured against specific security of pledge over sugar stock with 20% margin

amounting to Rs. 240 million and ranking charge of Rs. 267 million over stock. Mark up carries at the rate of relevant

KIBOR + 2% (2018: relevant KIBOR + 2%)
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20.1

20.2 Workers' Welfare Fund

Opening balance 11,858,137

           

11,858,137

            

Allocation for the year -

                        

-

                         

11,858,137

           

11,858,137

            

21 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

21.1 The Food Secretary Punjab imposed a penalty of Rs. 372,494 for late payment of sugarcane cess for the season 1999-

2000 against the Company. The Company made appeal in Lahore High Court which was dismissed by the

Honourable Court. Now the case has been filed in the Supreme Court of Pakistan and the legal counsel expects

favourable outcome of the case.

This includes an amount of Rs. 1.09 million (2018: Rs. 0.897 million) due to Adam Lubricants Limited, an

associated undertaking, as at reporting date.

2019 2018

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note ––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

Trade creditors 20.1 252,703,753
        

549,805,925
          

Accrued liabilities 253,341,020        141,616,924          
Advance from customers 214,077,139        123,486,910          
Retention money 96,976                 104,121                 

Workers Welfare Fund 20.2 11,858,137          11,858,137            

Others 2,014,124            2,014,124              

734,091,149        828,886,141          

21.2 The Company has filed a Civil Suit No. 167/214 in the court of Senior Civil Judge, Bahawalnagar, against

Government of Punjab and others, for recovery of Rs. 55,161,000 along with along with interest at the prevailing

market rate with effect from November 12, 2009 being market value of 987 metric tons of sugar stock forcefully lifted 

by the Government of Punjab over and above from the quantity fixed by the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan at

the rate of Rs. 38/kg. The legal counsel is confident that the decision of the case will be in favour of the company.

Therefore, the Company has recorded receivable amounting to Rs.37,507,900 for 987.05 metric tons at Rs.38/kg in

trade debts from Government of Punjab and the remaining amount of Rs. 17,653,100 is disclosed as contingent asset

pending at the outcome of the case.
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21.3

21.4

21.5

21.6

In the opinion of legal counsel, no provision has been made as appellate remedy in Supreme Court is available against

an adverse order, if any.

CPLA titled "Adam Sugar Mills Vs. Secretary to Govt. of Punjab, Food Department and Others" filed by the

Company on 10-07-2010 in the Supreme Court against the judgment dated 17-05-2010 of the Lahore High Court.

An appeal No. 28/2015, had been pending in Lahore High Court, Bahawalpur Bench, against Director PESSI etc.,

against order of Commissioner Social Security dated May 02, 2005 involving the disputed demand of Rs.1.6 million

on account of alleged unpaid social security contribution on special allowance.

The company has paid amount of Rs. 1,755,853 under protest payment and claimed a refund against it. The

management expect that the decision will be in favour of the company.

A case, CPLA No. 1134/1/2016, had been filed by the Company before the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan

against FBR and Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue, Multan etc. The issue involved is of legal interpretation

of the provision of the Sales Tax Act and relevant SROs regarding Further Tax Payment at actual sales price or at the

rate fixed by FBR. As per legal counsel of the Company the impact of the case is not going to be significant,

irrespective of the outcome of the case as only the differential amount between the tax paid at the notified price and

the tax payable at the actual price. Further, as per legal counsel the case is based on very strong legal grounds and the

appeal will be resolved in the favour of the Company.

An appeal No. 02/2013 is pending in the Lahore High Court Bahawalpur bench against order of Punjab Social

Security Court dated February 02, 2012 involving the disputed demand of Rs. 4.519 million.

In the opinion of legal counsel, no likelihood of liability is expected and right of appeal in the Supreme Court of

Pakistan exists with the Company.

21.7 Commitments

Guarantees issued by Banking Companies on behalf of the Company are as follows:

2019 2018

Note

Market Committee Chishtian                  130,000                    130,000 

Excise duty collection Multan 50,000

                  

                     50,000 

Punjab Employees Social Security Institution 23,518,154

           

              23,518,154 

–––––––––– Rupees ––––––––––
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Repairs and maintenance 29,552,236 50,184,491

Insurance 16,071,702 16,842,374

Flying ash removal expenses 1,695,764 2,446,265

Depreciation 5.2 84,456,176 67,775,855

1,979,722,543 3,072,170,789

Add: Opening work in process 4,843,350 6,118,261
Less: Closing work in process (4,291,003) (4,843,350)

552,347

                

1,274,911

              

Cost of goods manufactured 1,980,274,890

      

3,073,445,700

        

Opening stock -Molasses 23,907,037

           

4,763,375

              

Opening stock -Sugar 1,216,194,253

      

1,819,967,686

        

1,240,101,290

      

1,824,731,061

        

Closing stock -Molasses -

                        

(23,907,037)

           

Closing stock -Sugar (924,577,774)

        

(1,216,194,253)

      

(924,577,774)

        

(1,240,101,290)

      

2,295,798,406

      

3,658,075,471

        

                

              

                   

              

23 COST OF SALES

Sugarcane consumed 1,673,570,304 2,725,708,077

Handling expenses 2,615,280 1,998,637

Road cess 13,623,934 22,748,591

Stores consumed 23.1 21,646,851 41,448,856

Market committee fees 1,190,534 2,091,235

Salaries, wages and allowances 23.2 120,504,259 129,363,696

Fuel and power 14,795,503 11,562,712

2019 2018

22 TURNOVER - NET ––––––––––– Rupees –––––––––––

Export sale - Sugar -

                        

883,773,507

          

Rebate -

                        

238,428,274

          

-

                        

1,122,201,781

        

Local sale - Sugar 2,433,567,513 2,748,670,902

Sales Tax (270,894,480) (274,017,689)

2,162,673,033 2,474,653,213

Molasses 151,950,125 165,938,910
2,314,623,158 3,762,793,904
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Shifting expenses 1,935,187 5,063,011

Advertisement expenses 110,100 69,810

Export expenses - 46,131,045

Commission expenses 1,247,958 2,719,850

4,183,920 55,437,768

                      

                                    

                      

                            
                                    

                                     

                            

                          

                              
                           
                       

24.1

24.2 Auditors' remuneration

- Statutory audit fee 750,000

                

660,000

                 

- Review of half yearly accounts 200,000

                

200,000

                 

- Review of compliance with corporate governance 50,000

                  

50,000

                   

1,000,000

             

910,000

                 

24.3 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donor institutions.

2019 2018

25 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COST

Loading and unloading expenses 890,675 1,454,052

–––––––––– Rupees ––––––––––

It includes gratuity expense, being the provision of staff retirement benefits, with respect to eligible employees, as per

their employment contracts, amounting to Rs. 363,893/- (2018: Rs.404,087).

                   

23.1

23.2

24 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other allowances 24.1 41,322,078

           

43,350,437

            

Director remuneration 5,388,000

             

5,636,319

              

Printing and stationery 1,981,891

             

1,982,252

              

Postage and telephone 1,714,072

             

2,038,679

              

Vehicle running expenses 2,008,673

             

1,699,651

              

Conveyance and travelling expenses 917,767

                

692,959

                 

Auditors' remuneration 24.2 1,000,000

             

910,000

                 

Legal and professional charges 6,494,874

             

7,688,386

              

Rent, rates and taxes 828,640

                

806,200

                 

Electricity charges 2,799,825

             

2,917,346

              

Fees and subscription 2,336,123

             

414,279

                 

Entertainment 916,024

                

1,286,742

              

General expenses 835,156

                

1,037,664

              

Penalties 65,712

                  

7,651,585

              

Repair and maintenance 1,013,398

             

420,723

                 

Charity and donation 24.3 3,291,527

             

5,149,030

              

Computer expenses 431,481 2,882,861
Depreciation 5.2 4,119,338 4,326,118

77,464,579 90,891,231

It includes an amount of Rs.384,986/-(2018: Rs. 6.79 million) against purchase of lube oil from Adam Lubricants

Limited (associated undertaking)

It includes Rs. 663,288/- (2018: 635,568) contribution each from the employees and the company towards the

provident fund.
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28.1 Income tax assessments of the Company are deemed to be finalized as per tax returns file up to tax year 2018. Tax

returns are subject to further assessment under provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ("the Ordinance")

unless selected for an audit by the taxation authorities. The Commissioner of Income Tax may, at any time during a

period of five years from date of filing of return, select a deemed assessment order for audit.

 

2019 2018

28 TAXATION

Current 33,959,596

           

13,216,557

            

Prior year -

                        

672,815

                 

Deferred:

- due to origination and reversal of temporary differences (109,538,259) 19,535,939

- due to change in tax rate - (5,282,379)

(109,538,259) 14,253,560

(75,578,663) 28,142,932

–––––––––– Rupees ––––––––––

27.1 This represents the deposit amount paid by the broker at the time when the contract is made against purchase of sugar

and forfeited when the same has not been lifted within 15 days of contract.

2019 201827

Income from financial assets

Profit on saving account 944,911 860,830

Income from non-financial assets

Realised exchange gain -

                        

1,527,498

              

Sale of baggasse -

                        

6,009,930

              

Income from biological assets 1,897,424

             

1,830,515

              

Gain on disposal of fixed assets 1,148,613

             

-

                         

Deposits forfeited 27.1 -

                        

130,431,470

           

Miscellaneous 164,940

                

7,129,891

              

4,155,888

             

147,790,134

           

–––––––––– Rupees ––––––––––
OTHER INCOME

 

 

 

 

 

 

26 FINANCE COST

From conventional banking companies

Markup on short term borrowings 134,358,941 75,555,570

Markup on Long term borrowings 37,380,687 -

171,739,628 75,555,570

From islamic banking companies

Profit on Istisna and Salam finance 54,837,051

           

27,924,275

             

Bank charges 3,135,385

             

3,332,758

              

Unwinding of subordinated loan from director 1,890,728

             

1,734,611

              

231,602,792

         

108,547,214
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31.1 The investments out of provident funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the

Companies Act, 2017 and  the rules formulated for this purpose.

2019 2018

Transactions during the year

Contribution to staff provident fund 31.1 8,425,842 7,762,914

Purchases of oil and lubricants - from associated undertaking 10,053,076 6,790,306

Payment to associated undertaking against oil and lubricants 9,859,182 5,700,000

Balances at year end

Loan from director:

Long term loan 22,898,819

           

21,008,091

Short term loan - on demand 32,164,394

           

32,164,394

––––––––– Rupees –––––––––

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 17,290,962 17,290,962

Loss per share - basic and diluted (12.42) (1.78)

29.1

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings / loss per share of the Company, since there are no convertible

instruments in issue as at September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018.

Related parties comprise of group companies, key management personnel, directors and their close family members

and staff provident fund. Transaction with related parties are on arm's length. Remuneration and benefits to

executives of the Company are in accordance with the terms of the employment while contribution to the provident

fund is in accordance with staff service rules. Remuneration of the chief executive, directors and executives is

disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements. Transactions with related parties during the year other than those

disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are as follows:

 

 
28.2

29 LOSS PER SHARE - Basic and Diluted

Loss after taxation (214,691,988) (30,738,650)

The numerical reconciliation between the tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented for the current

and comparative year in these financial statements as the total income of the Company for the current and

comparative year attracted minimum tax under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and its export sales

fall under final tax regime.

2019 2018

30

Cash and bank balances 70,088,017          28,661,326            

Short term borrowings (1,194,210,333)    (1,233,855,153)     

(1,124,122,316)    (1,205,193,827)     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS –––––––––– Rupees ––––––––––

Annual Report 2019



54

                      

                                              

                       
33.1 Chief executive and two directors of the company have been provided with free use of company's car.

33.2 No employee of the company fall under the definition of "Executives" as per the Companies Act 2017.

-------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------

32.3 Major customer of the company accounts for 31% (2018: 15%) of gross sales of the company for the year.

33 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTORS

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including certain benefits to Directors,

Chief Executive and Executives of the company, as follows:

Chief 

Executive Directors Executives Total

Note

Basic salary 36,000

            

5,352,000

       

-

                

5,388,000

Vehicle expenses 33.1 96,344 245,040 - 341,384

132,344 5,597,040 - 5,729,384

Number of persons 1 6 0

Chief 

Executive Directors Executives Total

Basic salary 36,000 4,540,000 - 4,576,000

Vehicle expenses 33.1 41,933 44,044 - 85,977

77,933 4,584,044 - 4,661,977

Number of persons 1 6 0

2019

2018

-------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------

32 OPERATING SEGMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

32.1

32.2 All non-current assets of the Company at September 30, 2019 are located in Pakistan.

Revenue from sale of sugar represents 93.55% (2018: 95.59%) of the total revenue whereas remaining represent

revenue from sale of molasses and bagasse.
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Following is the fair value hierarchy of assets carried at fair value:

The transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred as at the date of event of

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 September 30, 2019

- Property, plant and equipment - 5,115,423,652 - 5,115,423,652

 September 30, 2018

- Property, plant and equipment - 1,814,627,166 - 1,814,627,166

–––––––––––––––––– Rupees ––––––––––––––––––

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

34.1 Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sale an asset are paid to transfer a liability in any orderly transaction

between market participants at measurement rate.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs

used in making the measurements:

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,

then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest

level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the

management recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during

which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between different levels of fair values mentioned above.

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES



                                     

                       

                       

 

 

 

Director's subordinated loan 22,898,819
           

21,008,091
            

Long term finance - secured 282,285,660         385,694,390          

Staff retirement benefits - Gratuity 2,344,104
             

2,215,013
              

Short term borrowings 1,194,210,333
      

1,233,855,153
       

Trade and other payables 722,233,012

         
817,028,004

          
Accrued markup 53,083,858

           

26,176,195

            Provident fund payable 8,425,842

             
7,762,914

              
2,285,481,628

      

2,493,739,760

       

34.3 Risks arising from nancial instruments

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk management

framework. All treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies. 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk

(interest/mark-up rate risk). The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of

markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance. The Company consistently

manages its exposure to financial risk without any material change from previous periods in the manner described in

notes below.

Financial liabilities

34.2 Categories of nancial assets and nancial liabilities

2019 2018

Financial assets

At amortised cost

Long term deposits 32,400 32,400

Short term investments 25,323,290 23,636,474

Trade debts - unsecured 65,470,541 92,309,602

Short term loans 1,688,350 1,980,290

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 1,493,151 6,590,726

Rebate receivable 10,860,305 133,827,563

Others receivables - considered good 1,028,548 995,818

Interest accrued 1,159,204 2,349,331

Cash and bank balances 70,088,017 28,661,326

177,143,806 290,383,530

-------------- Rupees --------------
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34.3.1 Credit risk

Concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with a possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its

obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any

collateral. 

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same

party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region,

or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly

affected by change in economics, political or other conditions. As of the reporting date, the Company was not

exposed to any major concentration of credit risk.

Maximum exposure to credit risk and its management strategies

2019 2018

Long term deposits 32,400 32,400

Short term investments 25,323,290

           

23,636,474

            

Trade debts (see note 'a' below) 65,470,541

           

92,309,602

            

Loans and advances - considered good 1,688,350

             

1,980,290

              

Deposits and prepayments 1,493,151

             

6,590,726

              

Rebate receivable 10,860,305

           

133,827,563

          

Others receivables - considered good 1,508,922

             

1,026,192

                 

Interest accrued 1,159,204

             

2,349,331

              

Bank balances (see note 'b' below) 70,062,153

           

19,230,128

            

177,598,316

         

280,982,706

          

Credit risk of the Company principally arises from long term deposits, trade debts, short term loans, deposits and

other receivables and bank balances. Following is the quantitative analysis of the Company's exposure to credit risk at

the reporting date:

-------------- Rupees --------------

 
 

The Company attempts to control credit risk arising from dealings with customers by monitoring credit exposures and

continually assessing the creditworthiness of its customers. As part of its credit risk management strategy, the

Company receives advances from customers against sales of goods. In addition, the Company has a system of

assigning credit limits to its customers based on an extensive evaluation based on customer profile and payment

history. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

A trade receivable is regarded as credit impaired as and when it falls under the definition of a 'defaulted' financial

asset. For the Company’s internal credit management purposes, a financial asset is considered as defaulted when it is

past due for 90 days or more.

Note 'a' -  Credit risk management of trade debts
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Bank Of Punjab PACRA A-1+ AA

Al Baraka Islamic Bank PACRA/VIS A-1 A/A+

Faysal Bank Limited PACRA/VIS A-1+ AA

Askari Commercial Bank Ltd PACRA A-1+ AA+

Allied Bank Ltd PACRA A-1+ AAA

Dubai Islamic Bank VIS A-1+ AA

MCB PACRA A-1+ AAA

Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA

Bank Alfalah Ltd PACRA/VIS A-1+ AA+

Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+

National Bank Of Pakistan PACRA/VIS A-1+ AAA

Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AA+

Allied Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA

JS Bank PACRA A-1+ AA-

Silkbank VIS A-2 A-

Summit Bank Limited VIS Suspended Suspended

Sindh Bank Limited VIS A-1 A-1

Note 'b' -  Credit risk management of bank balances

Bank Name

Short term Long term

Habib Metropolitan Bank PACRA A-1+ AA+

United Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA

Soneri Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA-

Rating
Credit Rating 

Agency

To minimize its exposure to credit risk, the Company maintains its cash balances only with banks with high quality

credit worthiness. As of the reporting date, the external credit ratings of the Company's major bankers were as

follows:
                                                                                                       

                                            

                   

                                                              

 

 

As of the reporting date, the aging analysis of trade debts was as follows:

The Company writes off a defaulted trade receivable when there remains no reasonable probability of recovering the

carrying amount of the asset through available means.

Gross Value Impairment Gross Value Impairment

Not past due 27,643,521 20,022,500 -

Past due 3 months -1 year - - -

Past due 1 year to 3 year 319,120 34,779,204 -

More than 3 year 37,507,900 37,507,900

65,470,541 - 92,309,602 -

2019 2018

–––––––––––––––––––––– Rupees ––––––––––––––––––––––
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34.3.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall

due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier

than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable

losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial

liabilities:

Carrying Contractual Twelve months One to ve

amount cash ows or less years

Non-derivative nancial liabilities

Long term loans 282,285,660

         

282,285,660

        

109,658,730

        

172,626,930

        

Director's subordinated loan 22,898,819

           

22,898,819

          

-

                       

22,898,819

         

Staff retirement benefits 2,344,104

             

2,344,104

            

-

                       

2,344,104

           

Short term borrowings 1,194,210,333

      

1,194,210,333

     

1,194,210,333

     

-

                      

Trade and other payables 722,233,012

         

722,233,012

        

722,233,012

        

-

                      

Accrued markup 53,083,858

           

53,083,858

          

53,083,858

          

-

                      

Provident fund payable 8,425,842

             

8,425,842

            

-

                       

8,425,842

           

2,285,481,628

      

2,285,481,628

     

2,079,185,933

     

206,295,695

        

Carrying Contractual Twelve months One to five

amount cash flows or less years

Non-derivative nancial liabilities

Long term loans 385,694,390

         

385,694,390

        

103,408,730

        

282,285,660

        

Director's subordinated loan 21,008,091

           

21,008,091

          

-

                       

21,008,091

         

Staff retirement benefits 2,215,013

             

2,215,013

            

-

                       

2,215,013

           
Short term borrowings 1,233,855,153

      
1,233,855,153

     
1,233,855,153

     
-

                      Trade and other payables 817,028,004 817,028,004 817,028,004 -

Accrued markup 26,176,195 26,176,195 26,176,195 -

Provident fund payable 7,762,914 7,762,914 - 7,762,914

2,493,739,760 2,493,739,760 2,180,468,082 313,271,678

2019

-------------------------------------- (R upees) --------------------------------------

2018

-------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------
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Sensitivity analysis:

As of the reporting date, if average KIBOR interest rate on borrowings had been 100 basis points higher / lower with

all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs14.49million

(2018: Rs. 16.19 million) respectively, mainly as a result of higher / lower net interest expense.

2019 2018 2019 2018

Financial liabilities

Long term loan 14.57% - 16.50% 9.01% - 10.53% 282,285,660

         

385,694,390

         

Short term borrowings 14.57%- 16.80% 8.18% to 11.93% 1,194,210,333

      

1,233,855,153

      

Financial Assets

Short term investments 8.42% to 11% 3.75% to 5.50% 25,323,290

           

23,636,474

           

Bank deposits - pls account 9.5% - 10% 3.5% to 4% 2,490,974

             

381,952

                

Effective interest rate (%) Carrying amount (Rs.)

a) Currency risk

b) Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments was

as follows:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to a

change in a foreign exchange rate. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign

currency. As of the reporting date, the Company was not exposed to any foreign currency risk as all its transactions

entered into during the year were carried out in Pak Rupees.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on the long term and short

term financing obtained from banks.

Since all the borrowings of the Company are variable rate borrowings, the Company is not exposed to fair value risk

on its borrowings.

34.3.3 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest

rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments,

speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company is exposed to

currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk.
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c) Price risk

                    

                    

              

              

36 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

36.1

37 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2019 2018

Total number of employees as at September 30 426 435

Average number of employees during the year 576 676

The companies finances its operations through equity and borrowings with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix

between various sources of finance. Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Company manages as capital:

During the crushing season 2018-19, mill operated 95 days(2018: 137 days) out of 180 days, therefore the capacity

utilization of the company remained under utilized mainly due to non-availability of sugar cane.

-------------- Number --------------

Metric Tons Days Metric Tons Days 

Crushing capacity 826,000

         

180 826,000

          

180

Cane crushed 363,306

         

95 606,623

          

137

Production - sugar 32,402

           

95 57,835

            

137

2019 2018

35 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence,

sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to

provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as net

profit after taxation divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend

to ordinary shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during the year

and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the

market prices (other than those arising from interest/ mark up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are

caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar

financial instruments traded in the market. As of the reporting date, the Company was not exposed to any material

price risk.

2019 2018

Borrowings

Long Term Finance - Secured 282,285,660
        

385,694,390
          

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 172,909,620

        
172,909,620

          Unappropriated (losses) / profit (29,603,177)

         

176,466,185

          Surplus on revaluation of property and plant 2,867,668,114

     

394,254,490

          General reserve 200,000,000

        

200,000,000

          
Share premium 172,909,620

        

172,909,620

          
Capital contribution from Director 8,737,612

            

8,737,612

              
3,392,621,789

     

1,125,277,527

       3,674,907,449 1,510,971,917

-------------- Rupees --------------
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QAMAR RAFI KHAN

38.1 Corresponding gures

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary and for the purposes

of comparison and better presentation. A major reclassification of corresponding figure made in the financial

statements is as follows:

       38 GENERAL 

38.2 Subsequent events

There are no subsequent events to report.

38.3 Date of authorisation for issue

38.4 Level of rounding

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

These financial statements were authorized for issue on February 06, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the

Company.

Reclassication from Reclassication to Rupees

component component

Mark up on long term borrowing

(Finance cost)

Unwinding of subordinated loan from 

director

(Finance cost) 1,734,611           

Advances from customers

(Trade and other payables) Trade debtors - unsecured 34,779,202         

Advances to contractors Short term prepayments

(Short term loans and advances) (Short term deposits and prepayments) 1,656,665           

Trade creditors Advance from customer

(Trade and other payables) (Trade and other payables) 12,872,850         

Trade creditors Accrued liabilities

(Trade and other payables) (Trade and other payables) 3,912,723           

Trade creditors

(Trade and other payables) Provident fund payable 623,039              

Trade creditors

(Trade and other payables) Unclaimed dividend 169,354              

          

        

            

OMAR G.ADAM
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